
July 13, 2015Planning Commission Meeting Minutes - Final

2 15-0666 File #: 2015-7266

Location: 825 Tamarack Lane (APN: 213-29-053)

Zoning: R0

Proposed Project: 

DESIGN REVIEW: To allow a new two-story single-family 

home resulting in 3,117 square feet (2,717 square feet of living 

area and a 400 square-foot two-car garage) and 56% floor area 

ratio. The existing 1,374 square foot one-story single-family 

home will be demolished.

Applicant / Owner: Arsen Avagyan

Environmental Review: Categorical Exemption, Class 3

Project Planner: George Schroeder, (408) 730-7443, 

gschroeder@sunnyvale.ca.gov

George Schroeder, Associate Planner, presented the staff report. 

Comm. Klein confirmed with Mr. Schroeder that an extra 175 square feet of high 

volume ceiling above the dining area that was previously not calculated into the 

Floor Area Ratio (FAR) reported in the staff report brings the FAR closer to 60 

percent, and that the additional square footage does not decrease the lot coverage. 

Comm. Klein verified with Mr. Schroeder that the new second to first floor area ratio 

is 69 percent, and discussed why the right side second story 8.9 foot setback 

where ten feet is required is not a deviation. Comm. Klein also confirmed with Mr. 

Schroeder that the tree removal, which will be accomplished by a Tree Removal 

Permit does not affect this development.

Comm. Rheaume verified with Mr. Schroeder the new FAR and the new first to 

second floor area ratio. Comm. Rheaume also confirmed with Mr. Schroeder that 

there is no Planned Development overlay for two recently remodeled homes on 

Tamarack, and clarified Alternative 1 with Mr. Schroeder. 

Vice Chair Olevson discussed with Ms. Caruso the difficulty of approving or 

denying the project when various, important elements of the Conditions of Approval 

(COA) are incomplete. 

Comm. Simons discussed with Ms. Caruso whether a continuance of the project 

with direction would be an acceptable alternative, and Ms. Caruso suggested 

speaking to the applicant about the option.

Chair Melton discussed with Mr. Schroeder how the Single-Family Home Design 

Techniques could help offset the the rear left exterior side of the house that 

appears to be a two story wall, and Chair Melton commented on his alarm at the 

massiveness of the project and said he is struggling with the FARs. 

Page 5City of Sunnyvale

EXCERPT
ATTACHMENT 3 

Page 1 of 5

http://sunnyvaleca.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=3817


July 13, 2015Planning Commission Meeting Minutes - Final

Chair Melton opened the public hearing. 

Arsen Avagyan, the project applicant, gave a presentation on the proposed project 

and submitted a petition signed by neighbors who support the project to the 

Commission.

No members of the public were present to discuss the project. 

Mr. Avagyan addressed several of the Commissioners' concerns. 

Comm. Simons confirmed with Mr. Avagyan that he is open to a continuance, and 

Mr. Avagyan said he would like to hear the underlying thinking behind it. 

Comm. Rheaume discussed with Mr. Avagyan whether he is amenable to the staff 

recommendation, and Mr. Avagyan asked the Commission to consider not 

disadvantaging smaller lots. Comm. Rheaume noted that he thinks the staff 

proposal is fair, and discussed with Mr. Avagyan why he is proposing a large FAR.

Chair Melton closed the public hearing. 

Comm. Rheaume verified with Mr. Schroeder that without including the high volume 

area in the calculations the FAR of the project would be 56 percent and the second 

to first floor area ratio would be 61 percent. 

Comm. Harrison clarified with Mr. Schroeder the rule about what is to be counted of 

a high volume area in the FAR, and confirmed that Building officials pointed out that 

the grading of the project does not meet the building code.

MOTION: Comm. Harrison moved Alternative 2 to approve the Design Review with 

modified conditions:

1) Incorporate staff recommended design modifications; and

2) The project will return to the Planning Commission if the final, revised project is 

    over 45 percent FAR. 

Comm. Simons seconded. 

Comm. Harrison said she appreciates the applicant's attention to the Planning 

Commission minutes and statements, but that she cannot follow the logic of putting 

the same size house that would meet rules on larger lot onto smaller lot. She said 

she trusts that the applicant can find a solution that will meet the 50 percent FAR 

Page 6City of Sunnyvale

EXCERPT
ATTACHMENT 3 

Page 2 of 5



July 13, 2015Planning Commission Meeting Minutes - Final

and the 50 percent second to first floor area ratio, and that she hopes the applicant 

understands that the second floor at 50 percent is above the guidelines for a house 

in a single story neighborhood.

Comm. Simons offered a friendly amendment to ensure that any stone front veneer 

wrap around the sides to meet the fencing. 

Comm. Harrison accepted.

Comm. Simons offered a friendly amendment to have staff work with the applicant 

to use the Single-Family Home Design Techniques to break up the flat, two-story 

wall. 

Comm. Harrison replied that reducing the the second story should accomplish this. 

Comm. Simons withdrew the amendment. 

Chair Melton clarified the motion and staff recommendation with Ms. Caruso. 

Vice Chair Olevson said he will not be supporting the motion, and that while he 

recognizes that this house is similar to others in this neighborhood in transition, 

there are too many moving parts in the proposal. He noted that City Council sets 

the policy of including over 15 foot ceiling heights in the second floor and adding 

that to the calculation, which may not have been done in past but is part of the 

process now. He said that the Commission has varied from the hard and fast FAR 

and first to second floor area ratio when it seemed to fit because there was an 

unusual lot size, and that while he appreciates the applicant researching prior 

Planning Commission decisions, the numbers are actually higher than originally 

reported. He said because so much is changing and the massing is too much, and 

because we are looking at roofline changes and grading changes, the basic things 

we evaluate to see if the project fits, it is not ready for the Planning Commission.

Comm. Rheaume further clarified the motion with Ms. Caruso. 

Chair Melton reiterated that the motion is to approve the Design Review with 

modified conditions.

Comm. Rheaume said he struggles with supporting the motion as there are a lot of 

open questions about the project. He said he appreciates the applicant's due 

diligence watching prior meetings, and that while the Commission has approved 

projects that go slightly beyond the FAR threshold this project is so far above it. He 

said he cannot make the findings to support the original proposal, but that it is not 

Page 7City of Sunnyvale

EXCERPT
ATTACHMENT 3 

Page 3 of 5



July 13, 2015Planning Commission Meeting Minutes - Final

what is currently proposed, so he will be supporting the motion. He added that the 

applicant has an oppprtunity to put together a nice plan.

Chair Melton said he will not be supporting the motion, and that he is aligned 

philosophically with Vice Chair Olevson with regard to the project having a lot going 

on and that we are contemplating substantial changes. He said when looking at the 

enlarged site plans he found himself staring at a couple schematics showing the 

second story to the first story floor area ratio, and that while he understands there 

may be multiple methodologies to calculating it, this thing is 70 percent and too 

massive. He said the FAR is also too big and he would support a motion to 

continue the project to a date certain, and provide verbal direction to staff that the 

FAR needs to be smaller, the second story to first story floor area ratio needs to be 

much smaller and to provide very specific direction about how to handle the two 

story block by the right rear of the property by the living room. He said we have to 

use some design technique like a setback, fake eave line or some line to delineate 

the second floor from the first floor. 

Comm. Klein clarified the motion with Rebecca Moon, Senior Assistant City 

Attorney. 

Comm. Klein said he will not be supporting the motion and thinks it is important for 

the project to come back in front of the Planning Commission whether by 

continuance or denial. He said the applicant needs to come back and reapply, and 

that with the number of changes required on the project it only makes sense for us 

to ultimately see how it fits in. He said he trusts staff on trying to improve the project 

but that we are looking at the massing and multiple changes which may or may not 

alleviate some of the issues that the Commmission has. 

Comm. Rheaume said he will change his vote, that there are too many outstanding 

issues and he would prefer to resolve them via a continuance so there is a clear 

direction of where we and the applicant are going.

Comm. Harrison withdrew her motion. 

Chair Melton confirmed with Ms. Moon that Comm. Harrison can withdraw the 

motion with permission of the Chair. 

Chair Melton verified wtih Comm. Harrison that she is withdrawing the motion.

Comm. Simons confirmed with Ms. Caruso that if the project is not continued to a 

date certain it would need to be re-noticed, and that a denial could be appealed 

Page 8City of Sunnyvale

EXCERPT
ATTACHMENT 3 

Page 4 of 5



July 13, 2015Planning Commission Meeting Minutes - Final

within 15 days and taken to City Council. 

MOTION: Comm. Simons noted that it would be difficult to come up with a date 

certain for a continuance, and moved Alternative 3 to deny the Design Review and 

provide direction to staff and the applicant where changes should be made. 

Vice Chair Olevson seconded. 

Comm. Simons had no further comment.

Vice Chair Olevson said the motion adequately says there ought to be more work 

where we are presented with final numbers and not things in process.

Comm. Harrison said she will be supporting the motion because believes 

whole-heartedly in the staff recommendation regarding the FAR and the second 

story to first story floor area ratio. 

Chair Melton said he will be supporting the motion and looks forward to seeing the 

applicant back at the Planning Commission. He said the applicant is on the right 

track but what he is asking for is just too big and we are not able to support it. He 

suggested the applicant recalibrate his expectations and come up with something 

smaller that will better fit into the neighborhood and to work with staff. He said he is 

comfortable with an FAR of 50 percent or less, that we have to taper down second 

floor to first floor FAR to 50 percent or 48 or 49 percent and that he does not know 

what to say about calculating the second floor to first floor ratio. He also said we 

have to tackle the wall and does not know if the applicant will do an actual setback 

to create a roofline with shingles or an artificial line or fake gutter, but that it 

absolutely must be addressed. He added that if the decision is to deny the project, 

the applicant has the right to appeal and take it to the City Council. 

FINAL MOTION: Comm. Simons moved Alternative 3 to deny the Design Review 

and provide direction to staff and the applicant where changes should be made. 

Vice Chair Olevson seconded. The motion carried by the following vote:

Yes: Chair Melton

Vice Chair Olevson

Commissioner Harrison

Commissioner Klein

Commissioner Rheaume

Commissioner Simons

6 - 

No: 0   

Page 9City of Sunnyvale

EXCERPT
ATTACHMENT 3 

Page 5 of 5




